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1

Park drafts RFP & Draft (proposed) Lease - 

Complete 

2 Region reviews RFP & Draft Lease

3

Park incorporates comments in  RFP and Lease, as

appropriate. 

4 WASO reviews RFP & Draft Lease 

5 DOI Solicitor reviews RFP & Draft Lease

6

Region/WASO and SOL approval to release the 

solicitation (RFP) is obtained 

7

Release RFP – RFP must be open for a minimum of

60 days.  Notice/publication in two local newspapers 

and Fedbizopps is required. 

8 Site visit and subseqent Q & A period 

9 Evaluation of Proposals/Selection 

10

Draft final lease, incorporating elements of selected 

proposal and including final fair market value rent 

11 WASO approval of final lease is obtained 

12 Lease is executed 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
STATUS AND NEXT STEPS 
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Minimum advertising required:  twice in local 

and/or national newspapers and/or through 

publication in the Fedbizopps.  

  

The public notice will include or identify: 
1. Information concerning the leasing process, 

2. Limitations on the use(s) of the property to be leased,  

3. Information that must be contained and materials 

which must be provided in any proposal submitted,  

4. The time and place for submission of proposals, terms 

and conditions of the lease, and  

5.  The criteria by which proposals will be evaluated.  

  

The minimum fair market value rent the NPS will

accept is identified in the RFP. 

 

Lease proposals  review and selection are 

closed and a highly confidential process.  

How are lease proposals solicited and selected 
when a Request for Proposals is issued? 

http://www.forthancock21stcentury.org/rfp 
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What is the minimum evaluation criteria for an 
RFP? 

The required criteria to be used for this RFP are: 
 

• The compatibility of the proposal's intended use of the 
leased property with respect to preservation, protection, 
and visitor enjoyment of the park; 

• The financial capability of the Offeror to carry out the 
terms of the lease; 

• The experience of the Offeror demonstrating the 
managerial capability to carry out the terms of the 
lease; 

• The ability and commitment of the Offeror to conduct its 
activities in the park area in an environmentally 
enhancing manner through, among other programs 
and actions, energy conservation, waste reduction, and 
recycling; and 

• The compatibility of the proposal with the historic 
qualities of the property shall be an additional selection 
criterion.  

• If the RFP requires proposals to include the amount of 
rent offered, the amount of rent offered also shall be an 
additional selection criterion. 
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 How  will NPS  determine the best proposal? 

 
▪ The Regional Leasing Officer convenes an evaluation panel to 

rate and evaluate proposals deemed responsive.    
 

▪ A non-responsive proposal is a proposal that was either not 
submitted timely or failed to meet the material terms and 
conditions of the RFP.  

 What is the purpose of the Evaluation Panel?

• The panel’s task is to review the proposals 
received in response to the RFP and to submit an 
evaluation summary to the deciding official.  
 

• The evaluation summary provides recommended 
scores and a narrative explanation of the panel’s 
basis for it’s decision.   
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Who is on the Evaluation Panel?  

• Panel members are selected by 

the Regional Leasing Officer. 

 

• All panel members must be 

federal employees.  

 

• All panel members will be from 

outside the Gateway NRA.  

 

• If Technical advisors are 

needed, they will be selected by 

the panel. 

 

• A Gateway NRA employee can 

serve as a technical advisor.    

MEMBERS MUST BE 

FEDERAL EMPLOYEES  
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What is the Role of the Panel?

• The panel will review all 

responsive proposals.   

 

• The panel applies the 

selection factors to the 

information contained in 

the proposals, and, in a 

discussion format, 

develops recommended 

scores for each selection 

factor for each proposal.   

 

• The panel or panel 

members draft the 

evaluation summary and 

make a final 

recommendation to the 

deciding official. 
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What is the Role of Technical Advisors?

 

• Technical advisors are selected by the panel.  

 

• Technical advisors review proposals when requested and 

provide technical information and advice to the panel.   

 

• Technical advisors do not participate in the panel’s proposal 

scoring discussions. 
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How is confidential information handled by the
panel? 

• The panel and technical advisors 

must be able to perform their 

responsibilities without conflicts of 

interest or the appearance of any 

conflict of interest.   

 

• The panel and technical advisors are 

required to sign a Conflict of Interest 

and Confidentiality Certificate 

Agreement prior to the start of the 

evaluation.  
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What are the steps of the evaluation process?

1. Opening Proposals:  The chair opens the proposals.    

 

2. Reading of Proposals:  The panel reads all of the proposals thoroughly to 

determine what information in a proposal addresses a particular criterion.   

 

3. Discussion Meeting(s):  The panel meets to discuss the relative strengths and 

weaknesses of each proposal and assigns scores to the proposals.   

 

4. Technical Advisors:  Technical advisors may be invited to attend the 

discussion meeting(s) but may not participate in the panel’s scoring discussions. 

 

5. Scoring: The panel seeks to reach a consensus among its members on the 

recommended scoring for each proposal.  

 

6. Evaluation Summary:   The final evaluation summary is provided to the 

deciding official.  The panel provides a recommendation as to the selection of 

the best proposal received in response to solicitation. 
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What is the final selection process?

The deciding official reviews the evaluation summary and accompanying 

documents.  After review by the deciding official, the responsive proposal with the 

highest cumulative point score is selected for the award.  
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Who negotiates the final lease terms? 

The park negotiates the final lease terms and conditions with the selected

Offeror.  The Office of the Solicitor reviews the final lease term and 

conditions for legal sufficiency. 
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When will the Lease be awarded?  

The award is not made until both parties (NPS and the selected 

Offeror) have executed the lease.  
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